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Situated at the west end of the quadrangle, the 1857 Marion Military Institute
Chapel is the focal point of the cempus. Flanking it at the south end is the oldest
structure on the campus, Lovelace Hall, which was constructed in 1854. Both are
designed in the Classical style which was so popular in antebellum Southern architecture,
and they have served as models for the school's later buildings.

The Chapel is a two-story hipped-roof brick structure, and its facade is divided
into three main bays which are dominated by the gabled center pavillion. The central
two-story portico features four Doric columns supporting a plain entablature and
pediment. A square clock tower surmounts the gable of the pavillion.

The dominant center pavillion is subdivided into three minor bays, featuring a
main entrance through recessed double doors surrounded by a transom and sidelights.
The window above the doorway is flanked by side panels which create a symmetrical
arrangement with the entrance. The outer second-floor windows are 6/6 double hung
sashes, while those on the ground floor are commemorative stained glass windows. All
the windows have a plain lintel above and a slip sill below., Brick pilasters are
attached at the corners of the center bay, and first floor doors and second floor
windows appear on the sides of the bay projection.

Cohering to the symmetry of the center section is the subdivision into three
minor bays and the treatment of the windows and doors of the side bays. Also,
brick pilasters corresponding to those of the portico are attached at the ends of
the side sections. A horizontal effect is strengthened by the extension of the
entablature across the facade and by a one-story gallery supported by small Doric
colums. One-story wings were added at each end in 1962 to provide additional classroom
space, and the gallery was extended the length of these to establish a stylistic
conformity. - :

In 1972 the interior of the Chapel underwent a complete interior renovation
which included remodeling the entranceway into a lobby, enlarging the balcony, and
replacing the theatre-type seats with pews. The two stained glass windows on the
front were also added at this time, though the exterior was otherwise unchanged.

Similar to the Chapel, Lovelace Hall is a two-story brick structure with a
hipped roof. A central gable creates a pediment-effect and corresponds to the
dominating pavillion of the Chapel. Six brick piers are attached on this center
section, as well as one at each end of the building. The flat-roof portion at the
north end was added around 1920. The dominant lintels, pedimented gable, pilasters,
entablature, and facade symmetry create a Classical effect which is in harmony with
the style of the Chapel. Lovelace Hall has continued to be used as a barracks
throughout the years, so the partitioning of the dormitory rooms has been the only
notable alteration.
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

The campus of Marion Military Institute contains two of West Alabama's most noted

antebellum educational landmarks, the Chapel and Lovelace Hall.

They are the two

remaining structures dating from the 1854-58 Howard College campus, and they depict
the quadrangle arrangement and Classical style which were so popular for nineteenth
century college campuses.

Founded in Marion in 1841 by the Alabama Baptist Convention, Howard College was
one of the three antebellum schools which led that Black Belt community to be considered
one of the leading educational centers in the state during the mid-nineteenth century.
When a fire in 1844 destroyed the original campus, the school rebuilt on the site now

occupied by Marion Military Institute.

a building program which began in 1854 following another fire.

The structures which remain, however, date from

The Civil War interrupted the momentum of construction, the enlargement of the
faculty, and the increase in enrollment, and it completely destroyed the endowment

fund.

In spite of this, the school remained open for students too young to enlist,

and between 1863-65 it was used as a Confederate hospital. Reguiar sessions resumed

- after the war, and in 1887, in response to the school's rapid growth, the Alabama
Baptist Convention decided to remove Howard College to the "young and flourishing

city of Birmingham'.

This left only the two female schools in Marion.

Colonel James Thomas Murfee, long-time president of Howard College, perceived a
rising demand for a private male academy to fill the educational vacuum in the area,
so he remained behind to become the first president of Marion Military Institute.

. The new school opened to 79 students in 1887, and in 1889 it received a charter from
. .the State of Alabama. Though over 100 such private schools offering "Classical"
curricula received charters around the turn of the century, Marion Military Institute

soon achieved the notoriety of being one of the State's finest.

As a junior college,

it offers college study through the junior class, and, except for the period 1907-15,
" it has maintained a Military Department offering complete training in preparation

for enrollment in the nation's service academies.

In recent years, Marion Military Institute has implemented campaigns for expansion

. of enrollment and construction.
-the Chapel and a new barracks was constructed adjacent to Lovelace Hall.

During the 1960's, the academic wings were added to

While this

filled in three sides of the quadrangle area, other recent structures on Polk Street

filled in the area behind the Chapel.
- to admit women and blacks into the high school department.

In 1970, the school expanded its enrollment
When the Military Depart-

. ment was temporarily abolished between 1907-15, the name had been changed to Marion
" Institute, but finally the school was renamed Marion Military Institute in 1975 in
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order to emphasize the military training program. The Alabama Military Hall of Honor
was also established on the campus at this time.

Today, overlooking the spacious parade ground from the west end of the quadrangle,
the Chapel continues to be the nucleus of the campus. It was constructed in 1857
according to a plan submitted by Dr. Noah K. Davis, one of the Howard College's
early faculty members. Though the 1972 renovation work resulted in several interior
alterations, the exterior still retains its original appearance. The wings which
were added in 1962 are attached at either end, and their style aims at imitating
the Classical feeling of the main structure.

Lovelace Hall, commonly known as the '0ld South Barracks' was also designed by
Dr. Davis and depicts the same Classical influence. It has served as a pattern for
two other barracks, Wilkerson Hall and New South Barracks, both situated on the
quadrangle. The exterior of Lovelace is basically unchanged, though a small section
on the east end was added around 1920. '

Though the Chapel and Lovelace Hall are the only two structures remaining from
the old Howard campus, their Classical style has been carried out throughout the
campus.
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LATITUDE 31° 42' 29"
LONGITUDE 87° 46' 18"

Beginning at the southeast corner of the intersection of Cobb and Church Streets,
and going 480 feet in an easterly direction to the true point of beginning; thence
turning in a northeasterly direction for 360 feet; thence southwardly for 450 feet;
then westwardly for 185 feet; thence northwardly for 160 feet; thence westwardly
for 50 feet; thence northwardly for 33 feet to the true point of beginning.



